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Trading Arrangements
Patrick Smart
BETTA Project
Office of Gas and Electrcity Markets (Ofgem)
9 Millbank
London
SW1P 3 GE
     
7th February 2003

RESPONSE TO SAS CONSULATATION
Dear Patrick
Thank you for the opportunity offered to Powergen to comment on the impact of BETTA upon the Settlement Agreement for Scotland (SAS).  We look forward to seeing the changes resulting from BETTA, which provide an opportunity to radically amend the existing arrangements, by creating a GB-wide market.  Please find our views on the items outlined in the consultation.

Vehicle for SAS run-off

Powergen's view is that the SAS ought to exist as a stand-alone agreement until final reconciliation, with run-off operations managed by the GB BSCCo.  For completeness, the agreement should be modified by deleting sections and terms that are not relevant to past business.  The advantages of this are that it helps to keep costs separate, enabling BETTA implementation costs to be budgeted and allocated appropriately.  Furthermore, we concur that this approach would mean run-off terms would not have to be included in the GB BSC and so keep costs to a minimum.  Potential issues arising in relation to Scottish and English law would also be avoided, and it would ensure clear demarcation between the licence responsibilities of SPDL and SHEPDL in the pre-BETTA world and the System Operator in the post-BETTA world.

Incorporating SAS run-off provisions into the GB BSC is likely to be a more difficult and controversial approach, with a greater risk that SPDL and SHEPDL could veto the relevant modification proposals, under the SAS modification procedures.  It is misleading to equate the option to the provisions of the PSA being incorporated into NETA as that involved the same industry participants, whereas BETTA is of course extending England and Wales provisions to participants previously outside of the BSC.  The administration costs of this approach and costs borne from several separate modifications to the SAS would outweigh the comparatively minimal costs involved in keeping the SAS as a stand-alone agreement until final reconciliation.

Administration of run-off

The role and functions of the SAS should be transferred from SESL to the GB BSCCo, with former SESL staff becoming BSCCo employees, providing support for the first six months.  This is the most cost-effective option as maintaining two autonomous settlement bodies has the potential to create conflict and confusion issues.  

We agree that the notion of employing a body other than SESL or GB BSCCo to administer the run-off arrangements is uneconomic and impractical.

Extent of reconciliation under SAS run-off

We feel it is imperative that the reconciliation of the SAS run-off runs for the full 14 months, or 18 months if including outstanding disputes.  The fact that the NHH market makes up around 60 percent of the overall market in Scotland is a key factor, which cannot be ignored.  Any costs saved for market participants in curtailing reconciliation at R3 are negligible when weighed against the potential loss that could result from errors occurring from data that has yet to be fully reconciled.  The typical bias is that data at R3 would typically cost non-Scottish companies more money than their share of the extra £1m for financial reconciliation and dealing with outstanding disputes.

Disputes under SAS run-off

We fully agree that a time limit needs to be set for raising and resolving disputes after final reconciliation.  We accept that two months to raise disputes does not allow much time to track down data anomalies, however, given the low number of disputes previously raised, and only one by a SAS party, and considering the savings gained in administering the SAS run-off, the short time limit of a total of 4 months after final reconciliation is the most favourable option.  The necessary modification to the SAS to realise this option should include confirmation that the 2 month period to resolve disputes does not allow for a dispute to be ignored if it falls out of the 2 month time limit.

The 22-month time limit set by the BSC for disputes seems disproportionately long for disputes under the SAS, given the probable small number of disputes.  We would prefer that time and money is spent on establishing the new GB wide settlement arrangements.

Cost Recovery

1998 Costs

Powergen concur that it is appropriate that SP and SSE should be allowed to recover the £10.3 million development costs that will be outstanding as at April 2004, or a lesser amount given a later BETTA implementation date.  In the options given, recovering the costs based on member shares 6 months prior to BETTA go-live is the most cost-effective and simplistic option.  It may however, be reasonable to recover such outstanding monies in stage payments over a number of years.  Recovering costs post BETTA is less practical for the reason given by Ofgem/DTI, that is, the changes to the existing settlement systems to identify the data required would result in additional costs.  

Treating the costs as BETTA implementation costs is certainly not a feasible option, as the costs bear no significance to a GB-wide market and England and Wales participants should not be expected to fund a redundant Scottish Settlement system.

One alternative, and perhaps a more simple option, would be to allow SP and SSE to recover the remaining £10.3m costs through their Distribution Use of System charges.

SAS Operating Costs

The only practical option to determine the allocation of the SAS operating costs is for them to be funded by Scottish market participants pre BETTA go-live.  Spreading the costs across GB creates cross subsidisation and not only discriminates against current non-Scottish participants but also discriminates against new entrants to the GB market under BETTA, as such SAS operating costs necessarily relate to the business transacted prior to BETTA implementation.

Options for SAS post run-off

It is most appropriate for the functions of the SAS to cease to have effect at the expiry of run-off, enabling all the members to resign from the agreement at that time.  As long as the provisions of the SAS are made redundant, terminating the agreement would be needless.

Licence Implications 

For the SAS to exist after final reconciliation, it is reasonable that amendments need to be made to the wording of the standard licence conditions for licensees to be a party to and comply with the SAS until final reconciliation.  The resignation of licensees at that time will deem the SAS obsolete and no further action would need to be taken in this regard.

We agree that the special licence conditions in the licences of SPDL and SHEPDL will have to be amended to reflect the obligation on these two licensees to provide the SAS only for the run-off period.

Powergen are happy to meet with Ofgem to discuss any of the issues raised in this response.

Yours sincerely,
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